
Ask for: Allison Allan        
Tel: 01622 694345 
Email: Allison.allan@kent.gov.uk  
 

Hythe Neighbourhood Forum 
Inaugural Meeting 

Monday, 16th May, 2011 
6-8 pm 

Hythe Youth Centre 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Welcome and Apologies    

2. Introduction and information re the forum: adoption of the Terms of Reference    

3. Report from KCC Highways on the following:    

 • Results of the consultation regarding the new bus stop on Dymchurch 
Road  

• Update on problems relating to School Road Hythe/Saltwood 

• Speeding Traffic – Horn Street – (D Bushell) 

• The High Street – issues relating to the gate 

• Update on the resurfacing of Chapel Street 

• Drainage issues  

4. Allotments in Hythe    

 A report from Hythe Town Council re numbers on waiting list and to explain 
covenants relating to Eaton Lands.  

5. Update on 106 monies    

 A report from Ben Gearing, Shepway District Council including: 

• Improvements to the High Street 

• Updating the position of funding of Christmas Lights  

6. Update on The High Street    

 A report from Chief Inspector Martin Bradley, Kent Police  

7. The youth of Hythe    

8. AOB    

 All members of the Forum will be asked to give an update for their 
area/organisation  

9. Frequency/Date of next meeting    

 

Community Engagement in Kent 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 – SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Terms of reference 
 
The following terms of reference are suggested: _ 
 
To undertake the following in respect of the forum area:-  
 

(i)   identifying and meeting the needs of the community in the local area, 
via consultation with and involvement of the community and other 
appropriate bodies.  

 
(ii)  consulting the community about any other issues that affect it and 

advising the appropriate council as appropriate on such issues.  
 
(iii)  seeking agreement for changes from the appropriate council to 

services to meet local needs including seeking agreement to revenue 
and capital expenditure to meet any changes.  

 
(iv)  monitoring local service delivery, considering the outcome of such 

monitoring and advising the appropriate cabinet and Overview and 
Scrutiny Overview Committee as appropriate.  

 
(v) acting as a community forum where the committee and members of 

the community can discuss issues of concern to them, such issues to 
include matters which are the direct responsibility of the participating 
councils and other issues which are the responsibility of other 
organisations.  

 
(vi) any other matter referred.  

 
Values and Quality Expectations 
 

• The neighbourhood forums will provide an opportunity for genuine 
dialogue and open discussion, enabling and encouraging an informal, 
participatory approach to community engagement. 

• Feedback on outcomes and actions resulting from neighbourhood 
forums should be promoted and communicated to participants. 

• The neighbourhood forums will deliver tangible outcomes and benefits 
for residents and for the community.  

• Each council represented will not withhold from discussion matters of 
service delivery or local concern that are of genuine public interest. 

• Members of the neighbourhood forums will make recommendations to 
their appropriate Portfolio Holder or Cabinet/Executive on behalf of the 
community. 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Roles and responsibilities  
 

• Members and officers will work together in a partnership that 
recognises parity of between the tiers of local government councils and 
seek the very best for the communities and residents of Shepway 
within the terms of reference and vision of the neighbourhood forums. 

• To encourage other statutory body and voluntary/community sector 
participation where applicable. 

 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX 2 – SUGGESTED GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

Hythe Neighbourhood Forum 
 
Governance arrangements 
 
1. General 
 
The neighbourhood forums shall be constituted under principles contained within 
the Local Government Act 2000 [i.e. similar principles to those of the Joint 
Transportation Boards and will be a non-statutory body]; 
 
The neighbourhood forums reflect the wishes of Hythe Town Council (HTC) and 
Kent County Council (KCC) to co-operate and work together on local public 
service issues within their remits; 
 
The neighbourhood forums are accountable in an advisory capacity to KCC’s 
Cabinet for KCC responsibilities and to HTC’s for HTC responsibilities; 
Each council shall bear its own costs incurred in the operation of the 
neighbourhood forums. 
 
2. Membership 
 
Membership will be as follows: 
 
Hythe Area Forum 
 
County division members: 1 
Hythe Town Council member: 1 
Hythe Civic Society: 1 
Hythe Chamber of Commerce:1 
Age Concern:1 
SDC officer:1 
Schools Rep:1 
Representatives from each of the wards in Hythe – East, West, Central (e.g. Palmarsh – 
Colin Datchler):3 
 

Hythe Town Council will appoint their representative as appropriate. 
 
Co-options are at the discretion of the neighbourhood forum and can be general 
or for specific meetings; all co-options are non-voting. 
 
The County Member will be appointed Chairman and Vice Chairman shall be 
elected from the remaining members.  
 
 

Page 3



 
 
 
3. Meetings 

Full meetings of the neighbourhood forums shall be in public. The neighbourhood 
forums will generally meet four times during each year at times and venues 
agreed by the neighbourhood forum members 

There will be no substitutes for representatives under these arrangements 

The quorum shall be as follows. 

Four representatives from any of the members involved.  

Procedural Rules for neighbourhood forums shall apply as set out below in 
appendix 3 

Copies of all agendas and discussion papers will be sent to neighbourhood forum 
members at least five clear days before the meeting. 

There will be an opportunity for the public to ask questions at all full meetings of 
the neighbourhood forums 

There may also be private meetings for the purposes of agenda planning and 
briefing of neighbourhood forum members. 

The access to information rules shall apply to the neighbourhood forums as if 
they were a KCC or HTC committee. 

All Councils will be responsible for publicising the neighbourhood forum meetings 
and will advertise as widely as possible. 

Page 4



APPENDIX 3 – SUGGESTED PROCEDURE RULES 
 
Hythe Neighbourhood Forums 
Procedure Rules 
Public involvement 
 
1. The neighbourhood forums will enable the public to raise oral or written 
questions on any matters falling within the remit of the neighbourhood forums. A 
summary of the questions asked and answers (if appropriate) given will be 
included in the neighbourhood forum minutes. 
 
2.  Meetings will be promoted as widely as possible to encourage involvement 
of the community in each neighbourhood forum area. 
 
Members’ Interests 
 
3. All Members are expected to consider whether they have a personal and/or 
prejudicial interest in any matter under discussion on the agenda and declare it 
accordingly at the start of the meeting.  
 
Attendance List 
 
4. Members of the public will be asked to leave their contact details for future 
contact regarding meetings.  
 
5. Members attending neighbourhood forum meetings must sign the 
attendance list or ensure officers record their presence. 
 
Meeting planning 
 
6 The Chairman and officers will liaise to prepare the agenda for the next 
meeting and a work programme for future meetings. The neighbourhood forums 
may also hold pre-meetings to consider business related to the neighbourhood 
forums (e.g. planning agendas, venues, actions) where the public/press are not 
invited.   
 
Neighbourhood Forum meetings 
 
7. The meetings of the neighbourhood forums will take place at venues in the 
local areas, in public, in general four times a year, on dates and at times agreed 
by each neighbourhood forum. 
 
8 KCC Community Engagement Manager (CEM) will invite all voting and 
non-voting members to a neighbourhood forum meeting by sending an agenda 
and accompanying papers to each member’s nominated address and normally 
be sent out at least seven clear working days before the meeting. 

Page 5



 
Agenda 
 
9. The agenda for each meeting of a neighbourhood forum will normally 
include: 

• minutes of the previous meeting for approval and signing; 

• reports seeking a decision from the neighbourhood forum [if appropriate]; 

• any item which a member of the neighbourhood forum wishes to be 
included on the agenda provided it is relevant to the terms of reference and 
notice has been given to the chairman or CEM at least nine working days before 
the meeting. 

• any item which a member of any constituent council, its cabinet or cabinet 
member wishes to be included on the agenda provided the prior approval of the 
Chairman has been given, it is relevant to the terms of reference and notice has 
been given to the CEM at least nine working days before the meeting. 
 
10 The Chairman may decide that there are special circumstances that justify 
an item of business, not included on the agenda, being considered as a matter of 
urgency. The reasons for urgency must be stated at the meeting and the clerk 
shall record them in the minutes. 
 
11 Neighbourhood forums will normally consider items in the order that they 
appear on the agenda. The Chairman may vary the order if it is thought 
appropriate and will explain their reasons to the neighbourhood forum. 
 
Voting 
 
12. If any Member requests, the Chairman will call a vote on any 
recommendation or a motion or amendment. The vote will be by a show of hands 
by voting members of the neighbourhood forum present. 
 
13. If the votes for and against are equal, the Chairman does not have a 
casting vote and, therefore the recommendation, motion or amendment falls. 
 
Rights to Attend and Speak 
 
14  Members of the public will be encouraged to participate in all facets of the 
public part of the forum meetings and will be encouraged to suggest topics for 
discussion at future meetings.  
 
13. If a member of the public interrupts a meeting or otherwise behaves 
irregularly, improperly or offensively, the Chairman may request that they leave 
the room or order that they are removed. In the event of a general disturbance, 
the Chairman may suspend the meeting or direct that the public be excluded 
from it. No-one so removed or excluded will be permitted to return to the meeting. 
 

Page 6



14. Any Member of any constituent Council are encouraged to attend any 
meeting of the neighbourhood forums, including those parts of the meeting from 
which the public and press are excluded. They do not have a right to vote or 
move a motion or amendment, but may speak on matters with the consent of the 
Chairman [such consent to be sought before the meeting and should not 
normally be withheld). 
 
Attendance of officers at meetings 
 
15. Cabinet members and council officers will be expected to attend any 
neighbourhood forum meeting when asked to do so by the Chairman. Such 
requests must be reasonable in terms of notice, demand and expectation. 
 
16. A supporting officer from KCC will always be present at all neighbourhood 
forum meetings. They will help plan, manage and co-ordinate the business for 
the neighbourhood forum; provide procedural and constitutional advice; and will 
take notes of and actions arising from the meetings. 
 
Actions  
 
17.  It is expected that neighbourhood forum Chairman will take the lead in 
pursuing actions resulting from meetings and reporting back to the 
neighbourhood forums.  
 
Issues of interest to more than one neighbourhood forum 
 
18. Any follow up work on issues involving more than one neighbourhood 
forum will be the responsibility of all Chairmen and officers involved. 
 
Discussion of Individual Officers 
 
19. No discussion shall take place in a meeting about the terms or conditions of 
employment or the performance, or conduct of any officer of any Council 
 
E-Government 
 
20. Copies of agendas, agenda items, notes and actions are published on the 
KCC website. 
 . 
 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  

 

HYTHE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
ANNUAL REPORT – 2010/11 

 

 

This report will be placed in full on the Town Council’s website – which is to be found at 

www.hythetowncouncil.gov.uk  Details of all the Council’s operations can also be found in 

the Year Book – which is available to view and down load from the website. 

 

Town Council’s Websites 
The Town Council operates two websites: the Portal website is www.hythe-kent.com which 

gives general information about the Town and the community as a whole.  The Town Council 

also has its own local government business website - www.hythetowncouncil.gov.uk  The 

Town Council’s website is increasing in popularity with approaching 100,000 hits during the 

course of the past year.  A large number of “hits” come from oversees (currently 46%) with 

the top countries being USA and China.  The websites are updated weekly and even more 

regularly when required and provide public access to Agendas, Minutes and other Council 

documents, as well as facilities and hire arrangements.   

 

Thanks go to the webmaster – the Town Council’s Finance Clerk - Mr Adrian Wilson for his 

work on both sites, into which he has put a considerable amount of time and effort. 

 

Meetings 

There have been 11 Council meetings during the course of this last year.  Its principal 

Committees – Finance and General Purposes and Plans and Works have met 10 and 17 times 

respectively.  Thanks are due to the respective Chairmen of both these Committees – 

Councillor John Schoner and Councillor Reg Belcourt.  Other Committees and Sub-

Committees of the Council and its Committees include the following which have all met 

during the course of the last year: 

 

CCTV Committee 

Standing Orders Committee 

Internal Audit and Assets Sub-Committee 

Sports Pavilion User Group 

Allotments Working Group 

S106 Working Group 

Interreg Working Group 

 

Some of the above Sub-Committees and Groups have included not only Town Councillors but 

also representatives from outside bodies.  The Town Council has long subscribed to 

partnership working and it is very grateful for the external input and assistance which it 

receives in the conducting of its business.  The S106 Working Group will be dealing with 

grants for events in and around Hythe High Street over the course of the next few years. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



2 | P a g e  

 

Charity Trustees 
The Town Council is the Corporate Trustee for a number of Charities. There have been 4 

meetings of the full Charity Trustees.  These meetings are held separately to Council 

meetings.  All Councillors are Trustees.  The Town Council is responsible for the operation of 

four charities – Horn Street, Palmarsh, Eaton Lands and Davis Oaklands.  It also provides the 

administrative support to the Wakefield Bequest, of which 4 serving Councillors are currently 

Trustees.   The Town Council has recently completed its negotiations of the rent review for 

Hythe Library for the next five years, the rent on which it now passes over to the Davis 

Oaklands Charity so as to enable the Oaklands building and Oaklands grounds to become 

self-funding 

 

Annual returns are undertaken by the Town Council for all the above Charities to the Charity 

Commission. 

 

Oaklands – Local History Room / Museum 

Mrs Janet Adamson continues in her role as the Hon Curator of the Museum and she usually 

frequents Oaklands on a fortnightly basis, fielding many and varied enquiries of an historical 

nature.  She also ensures that archived material is catalogued.  Janet provides a valued and 

much sought after service and grateful thanks are due to her. 

 

Oaklands – Bandstand Concerts 

The Town Council continues to run its popular band 

programme with 19 performances during the course of the last summer providing a large 

array of music.  A similar programme is planned for the forthcoming season.   The 

programme is planned to provide for a wide variety for musical tastes - from the Big Band 

sound to solo performers.  Details of the band concerts are available on the two websites. 

 

Town Hall 

The Town Hall has held 14 events and 24 guided walks 
during the course of the year and it has been used by 9 organisations.  It was a central point 

for the Hythe Festival in the summer of 2010 for which free use was granted for all events by 

the Town Council. 

 

Page 10



3 | P a g e  

 

The Town Hall’s Undercroft has been utilised on 31 occasions by charities and it is a focal 

point within the Town.  Its use is free to local organisations and it is recognised as an effective 

public focal point and service. 

 

The Civic Society hosts weekly tours of the Town Hall as part of their organised walks which 

take in the many facets of the Town’s history – including Oaklands and its Museum. 

 

Town Council Surgeries 
These are available to be held on an appointment basis on a monthly rota. 

 

Eaton Lands 
The Town Council has now successfully completed the second phase of its Big Lottery Fund 

Breathing Places.  This work has involved the production of a leaflet on Eaton Lands and also 

for surface improvements to the bridleway to the rear of Tanners Hill Gardens.  The following 

provides a link to the leaflet on the Hythe Community Website – www.hythe-kent.com 

The Town Council continues 
to liaise closely with the Hythe Civic Society regarding the environs of Eaton Lands. 

 

The northern meadow area continues to be maintained, with the grass amenity area to the 

south regularly cut 12 times per year and the wildflower element to the north managed so as 

to try and ensure its sustainability.  Paths are regularly cut through the meadow so that people 

can enjoy the area. Public Footpath HB 25 which runs through the meadow has been cut back 

and the woodland area’s paths and steps have been refurbished.  

 

Town Council Allotment Sites 

Recent allotment inspections have revealed that the allotment sites are all 
in reasonably good shape and thanks are due to the Allotments Clerk, Mrs Jeni Lawford, for 

her regular inspections, ensuring that plots are in good order. 

 

Allotments Working Group 
The Town Council’s Allotments Working Group works in close collaboration with the 

tenants and their representatives.  The Town Council has recently undertaken a consultation 

exercise with all interested parties in regard to the allotment sites’ being leased to the local 

allotment society.  This could lead to the tenants’ being able to apply for external grants for 

improvements. 

 

 

 

Page 11



4 | P a g e  

 

Eaton Lands Allotments  
There is a large area of Eaton Lands which is given over to three distinct allotment areas 

which are fully occupied with 97 plots and there is a waiting list of 48 “would-be” tenants.  

The Town Council rents these areas from the Charity.  The allotments have been steadily 

improving over the years. With the long waiting lists there is now an even greater need to 

ensure that all the plots are properly cultivated.  The new Eaton Lands Meadow allotment site 

is now in full operation. 

 

Longbridge 
This statutory allotment site of 12 plots is fully let with a waiting list of 26, having been 

formerly semi-derelict.  A new entrance gate and fencing has been erected during the course 

of the last year. 

 

Twiss Road 

The Twiss Road site is fully occupied with 29 plots and a waiting list of 56.  Mains water and 

a new tank have been installed at the site following the completion of the new football pitch.  

Hedge planting has commenced between the pitch and the allotments and this is the first step 

of the enclosure of the whole site by means of planting and fencing.  The Town Council is 

pleased to be associated with the Transition Town Scheme of which this planting forms part. 

 

There is currently an overall allotment waiting list of 86. 

 

Hythe Green 

This informal open space area – which is maintained by the Town Council - is the host to 

many activities including x 14 Boot Fairs inclusive of the Mayor’s Boot Fair.  Local charities 

and organisations benefit from these events and it provides them the opportunity to boost their 

funds.  Details of the forthcoming Summer Boot Fairs are on the Hythe community website. 

 

There are also several circuses and funfairs which are stage regularly on the Green.  There 

have been 4 during the course of the last year. 

 

The Green is also used by the large biennial events – the Festival and the Fete as well as 

circuses and fun fairs.  It provides free car parking provision in the form of the Portland Road 

Car Park, as well as a play area which is inspected on a weekly basis for defects. 

 
Thanks are due to the membership of The Green Preservation Society which undertakes 

regular litter picking on the Green.   

 

Property Matters 
The Town Council has embarked on a further four year programme of upgrading its 

properties.  The properties for which it is responsible are Oaklands, including the Museum 

and Hythe Library, Oaklands Grounds and Bandstand, the Town Hall, Sanford House, Sports 

Pavilion, the Hythe War Memorial and the Shepway Cross - together with its landholdings at 

the Green, Palmarsh, Horn Street and South Road Recreation Grounds and Eaton Lands.  It 

also is responsible for the Hythe Skatepark, the Grove and it leases land to the Hythe Cricket 

and Squash Club and the Hythe Lawn Tennis Club. 

 

It has recently undertaken a property survey on all of its properties.  Oaklands will be the next 

property to have a facelift. 

 

Page 12



5 | P a g e  

 

The Town Council is currently having a Tree Audit undertaken on all of its land so as to 

maintain and improve its tree stocks. 

 

New fencing is planned for the Green and at South Road Recreation Ground. 

 

Hythe Sports Pavilion 
 

The new building was officially opened by the Mayor on 
the 7

th
 August 2010.  Since then it has been well used by cricketers, footballers and other 

organisations.  This exciting project for the Town provides four changing rooms, officials’ 

changing areas, a lift and disabled shower facilities and a first floor suite with a balcony and a 

fully-fitted kitchen and store areas.  Externally, there is a car park for 32 vehicles and a kiosk 

to serve the tennis and bowls areas which lie adjacent. 

 

The new football pitch has been created on land to the west of the Twiss Road allotment site 

and this will brought into use for the next football season. 

 

Hythe Skatepark 
This much used resource is intended to be enhanced with some additional funds of £10,000 

having been put aside by the Town Council over this year and next.  The impetus for this 

project has come from the users themselves who have devised their own scheme with 

additional ramps. 

 

CCTV 
The Town Council operates the 11 cameras within the Hythe Town Centre system paying for 

both the maintenance and transmission costs and maintaining a capital CCTV Sinking Fund.  

The Town Council has recently successfully negotiated the transfer of the CCTV system from 

the Shepway Control Room to Ashford Borough Council’s Control Room where it will be 

monitored on a 24 hour, 7 day per week basis. 

 

Planning Matters 
There have been several significant planning applications which have affected the Town 

during the course of the last year notably at Fisherman’s Beach and ongoing conditions issues 

for the Sainsbury’s supermarket.  In total, 166 planning applications have been discussed by 

the Town Council’s Plans and Works Committee. 

 

Appointments to Outside Bodies 
The Town Council also has appointees to other bodies and the Town Council is very grateful 

to those Members who have served this year on the following bodies : 

 

 

Page 13



6 | P a g e  

 

Age Concern 

Hythe Chamber of Commerce / Tourism Forum 

Hythe Twinning Association 

Kent Association of Local Councils 

Shepway Tourist Action Group 

Hospital of St Bartholomew and St John 

Hythe Institute Fund 

Hythe Sick Fund 

Anne Peirson Trust 

Newington Unknown Donor’s Charity 

Wakefield Bequest 

 

From May this year the Town Council will also be involved in the Kent County Council’s 

Neighbourhood Forum for Hythe. 

 

Thanks are due to all the above local organisation and to the others that work so hard on the 

Town‘s behalf. 

 

Staffing 
The former Town Sergeant, Mr Graham Johnson, retired after 10 years of service.  He has 

now become the Sports Pavilion caretaker.  Thanks are due to him for his devoted service.  He 

has been replaced by Mr Terry Reene who has been in post since October 2010.  Other than 

that all other staff remain in post and are to be thanked for their hard work during the course 

of the past year. 

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Agenda Item 5

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88


	Agenda
	2 Introduction and information re the forum: adoption of the Terms of Reference
	4 Allotments in Hythe
	Conveyance document
	Eaton Lands Scheme

	5 Update on 106 monies
	Section 106 Agreement

	6 Update on The High Street

